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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limlited by Guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

The Trusiees (who are alsc diractors of the charlty for the purposes of the Companies Act) present thelr annual
report together with the auditad financial statements of Grand Union Mulli Academy Trust, formetly Featherstone
High School (the Academy and the group) for the year 1 September 2015 to 31 August 2018. The Trustees
conflrm that the Annual Report and financial statements of the Academy and the group cemply with the current
statutory requirements, the requiremants of the Academy and the group's governing document and the
provisions of Accounting and Reporting by Charlties: Staterent of Recommended Praclice applicable to
charitles preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financlal Reporiing Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland, FRAS 102, Charities SORP (FRS 102), the Academies Accounts Direction 2015 to 2016,

Charities Act 2011 and Companies Act 2006.

On 1 September 2016 the academy became the founding member of Grand Unlon Mulli Academy Trust and
changed its name from Featherstone High School.

The principal activity of the trust is to operate an academy for pupils aged 11 to 18 serving the catchment area In
Southall, with admissions based on His catchment area. It has overall pupll capacity of 1750 with 11-16 capacity
of 1350 and 16-19 capacity of 400. The academy had a roff of 1570 in the school census in October 2015 which
consistad of 1200 pre 16 students and 370 post 16. In the latest census October 2016, pre 16 numbers have
increased to 1225 due to an additional 30 spaces heing allocated to Year 7 which will then move through the
years creafing an extra 150 spases In pre 16 by 2020, There were 350 post 16 students in October 2016.

Structure, Governance and Management

Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charily. The charitable company's
memorandum and articles of assoclation are the primary governing documents of the Acadamy Trust.

The Trustess of the charltable activities of Grand Union Multi Academy Trust and are also the directors of the
charitable company for the purpeses of company law., The charitable company is known as Grangd Unlon Mulli
Academy Trust. ' '

Detalls of the Trustess who served throughout the year are included in the Reference and Administrative Dotails
on page 1,

Members’ Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to confribute to the assets of the charliable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, ar within one year after they cease to be a membesr, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabliities contracted before they ceasad to be &

member,

Trustees’ indemnities

Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance to cover the liabitity of the Trustees which by virlue of any rule of law
would otherwise attach to them in respact of any negligence, default or breach of trust of breach of duty of which

they may be guilty in relation to the Academy Trust. The cost of this insurance in the year was £1,878, Detalls
are provided in note 12 to the Financial Statements. :

fethod of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Truslees

The management of the Academy ls the responsibifity of the Trusteas who are elected and co-opted under the
terms of the articles of assoclalion. ’

The Governing Body comprises the Headteacher, 5 Parent Trustees, 4 Community Trustees, 3 Staff Trustees
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guaraniee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

and 4 Co-opted Trustees. Parent Trustees are normally elecled by parents of students registerad at the school
and the Governing Body makas arrangements to notily parents of a vacancy and oversees a secret ballot where
the number of hominees exceeds the number of vacancies, Staff Trustees are similarly elected by staff.

Whete nacessary, other Trustees are appointed after searching local community groups and businesses
dependant on the person specification seen as needed. Gurriculum Vitas's are requested. Volunisers first visit
the school and mest the Chair of Trustees, Headteacher and another Trustees. This is a preliminary sift and,
where appropriats, a recommendalion would be made for a candidate to be presented to the Fuli Governing
Body with a view to an appointment.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

All hew Trustees are given an induction pack and, if not familiar with the schodl, are invited fo a tour and to meet
key Trustess and staff. Trustees support is available through an oulside consultancy gpecialising in Trustees,
Training/courses are also available through London Borough of Ealing on a pay as you go basls. There s a
named Trustes to provide detalls of relevant courses, encourage attendance and monitor Trustee-wide training
undertaken. There is an Annual Trustees Saturday Workshop which focuses on tralning needs.

Organisational Structure

Grand Union Multi Academy Trust has a unifled management structure to ensure It Is run in an efficlent way. The
structure consists of two broad levels. The Trustees and the Senior Leadership Team {SLT) are responsible for
strateglc direction: The 3 core operational teams are populated with middle leaders and overseen by relevant
members of SLT - Pupil Progress, Curticulum Developers and Teacher Developers. The aim of the
management structure is to devolve responsibifity and encourage Involvement in decision making at all levels,

The Trustess fulfll a largely strategle role, They adopt an Academy Development Plan (SDP), They sanction an
annual budget. They monitor Academy performance and, on advice, make decisions about the direction of
Grand Union Multi Academy Trust, its capital expenditure and senior staff appointments.

The SLT for the year ended 31 August 2016 are the Headieacher, 4 Deputy Headteachers, 5 Assistant
Headteachers and 1 Associate Assistant Headieacher, One of the Deputy Headteachers was seconded 1o the
Lacal Authorlty for the whols acadamic year on a Full Time basis.

The SLT contro! the Acaderny at an execulive lavel implementing the policies lald down by the Trustees and
reporting back to them. As a group, the SLT Is responsible for the authorisation of spending within agreed .
budgets and the appolntment of staff, other than speclfic senlor staff appointments for which the Governing Body
is responsible (having regard to the Headteacher's advice). Some spending control is devolved to members of
SLT and appolnted budget holders. The Headteacher Is tha Accounting Officer.

Risk Management

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Academy is exposed, in pariicular those relating to the
spedific teaching, proviston of facilities and other operational areas of the Academy, and its finances, The
Trusteses have implemented a number of systems to assess risks that the school faces, especlally In operational
areas such as teaching, health and safety, bullying and school trips as well as those relailng 1o the control of
finance. They have introduced robust systems, including operational procedures such as the vetting of new staff
(DBS checks), supervision of school grounds and internal financial contrels to manage and minimise risk. Where
significant financlal risk still remains, they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover In place, The
Trustees are salisfied that systems and procedures are in place to mitigale the exposure 1o major risks.

Connected Organisations, Including Related Party Realatienships

Grand Unlon Multi Acaderny Trust works closely with Featherstone Sports Centre Lid which exists to promote
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

tha health and wellbeing as well as improve the condition of life in the local community. Although Featherstone
Sports Gentre Lid Is a subsldlary company of the Academy, it is a separate entity, However organisational
decisions for the Sports Cenire are made by the Communily Sports Gommittes which is a sub-committee of the
Full Governing Body and includes the Headteacher,

Featherstone Sporis Centre Limited had turnover of £292,914 (2015 £330,149) with a deficit of £10,430, after
donations of £20,334 to the Academy Trust,

The Academy also has a related perty relationship with Featherstone Schoal Sporis Parthership (88P) which
exists to provide Physical Education lessons to schools in London Borough of Ealing, The SSF is not a separate
legal entity but a collaberative working partnership with London Barough of Ealing.

The Acadermy recelved intomea to provide S8P provision to a local primary school where one of Academy
Trustees' Is also a Trustees, In terms of payments, the Academy used Ambassadors of Seund Lid (DJ services
connected to a Trustee) during the period ended 31 August 2016. The Academy also employed two related
parties to carry out duties at the sports centre and in reception. All of these transactions were on commercial
terms and detalfed in note 26 to the Financial Statementa.

Objectives and Activities
Objacts and Aims

The principal object and activity of the charitable company is the operation of Grand Union Mulli Academy Trust
to provide education for pupils of different abilities batween the ages of 11 and 19 with a specialism in Sciences
and Spott.

In accordance with the Funding Agreement made under sectioh 482 of the Education Act 1996, as substitiied by
the Education Act 2002, between the Secretary of State for Childran, Schools and Fawmillies and the Academy
Trust, the Academy is Govemed by a Governing Body which exercises s powers and functions with a view to
fulfilling a largely strategle role In the running of the school. The Funding Agreement specifies the admission
arrangsments, amongst other things, and that the cutrictulum, In substance, complles with statutory
requirements.

The main objectives of the Acadamy during the year ended 31 August 2016 are summarised below:

. To ensure that every child enjoys the same high quality education in tarms of resourcing, tultion and care

' To raise the standard of educatlonal achlevement and progress of all pupils

' To improve the effectiveness of the Academy by kesping the curriculum and organisational strusture
under continual review

. To provide value for money far tha funds expended

, To maintain close links with the community, industry ahd commerce

. To conduct the Academy's business in accordance with the highest standards of integrity, probity and
openness

Objectives, Strategles and Activities

The Academy's main strategy ie to raiss standards of achievement and progress through an unrelenting focus on
continuous improvement In all aspects of the organisation. The core purpose of the Academy is teaching and
learning: iis people and resources are constantly measured by thelt contribution to the overall quallty of teaching
and learning and therefore the standards achleved by It students. :

Key activities which support the rnain strategic purpose of the organisation are:

J Robust quality assurance procasses which are transparent and Inform all subsequent actions
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

. Secure Use of data and tracking to measure progress and inform actions and intervention

. A constant review of GPD and tralning apportunities for staif

. A core structure which allows al} staff and students to understand thelr role within the organisation and
also to ensure that Bnes of accountabllity are also clear

* Struetures to support the organisation and integration of all internal and external resources and support

available for both students and staft
The Academy Development Plan can alse bs seen for further information.

Public Beneflt

In setfing the Academy objectives and planning activities the Trustees have given careful consideration to the
Charlty Commission's general guidance on public benefit. Pupils are admitted In accordance with the admisslons
policy agread with the Department for Educatlon {DSE). Children are admitted from a wids range of backgrounds.
The Academy has a rich curriculum which alms to deliver good academic progress with a range of activities and
axperiences, offering pupils a chance to demonstrate their abllities and potential.

Additionally, £6,265 was collected and received as restricted charltable donations through a variety of activities
including Children in Nead, MacMillan Coffee Morning, Poppy Appeal, Charlty Disco, lreland Gaelic Tiip
Danations, and so on. Al of this has been passed on to the relevant charilies, relevant raised amounts used for
the Ireland Gasllc Trip, with the balance being used to cover operational costs as at 31 August 2016.

Equal opportunities policy

The Trustees recognise that equal opporiunities sholld be an integral part of good practice within the workplace.
The Academy aims to estabiish equal opportunity in all areas of ifs activities Including creating a working
environment In which the contribution and needs of all people are fully valued.

Ramps, lifts and disabled toilets are installed and door widths are adequale fo enable wheelohair access to all
the main areas of the Academy. The policy of the school Is to support recruitment and retention of pupils and
employees with disabilitics. The Academy does this by adapting the physlcal environment, by making resources
avaitahla and through training and career development.

STRATEGIC REPORT
Achlevements and Performance

Trustees will be aware that the Governmient have introduced a new performance measure which will be used
from 2016 onwards. This new Progress 8 measure is designed to encourage schools to offer a broad and
balanced curriculum at KS4 and Is based on students’ progress measured across elght subjects: English,
Mathematics (hoth carry a double weighting and constilute what is called English/Maths element or "Bucket 17}
ihree other English Baccalaureate (EBacc) subjects (Science, Computer Sclence, Gsography, History and
Languages which make up the Ebacc element or “Bucket 27); and three further subjects, which can be from the
range of EBacc subjects, ot can be any othar approved, high-value arts, academic, or vocational qualification
{known as the Open Element or “Bucket 3"). The results for the new league table measures are shown helow
wlth our target (FFT 20 which If reached places us In top 20% schools in the country} shown In brackets:

% passing both English and Maths:  61% (Target 62%)

Aftainment 8: 49.9% {Target APS 48.9%)
Prograss 8. +0.24 {Within top 20%)
EBace: 21% (Target 24%)

Whilst & Progress 8 scars of +0.24 Is significantly posiiive nompared with schools natianally it is below [ast year’s
result. Qur Progress score for the Ebacc elemant was very strong at +0.7 which placed Grand Union Mult
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

Academy Trust in the top 7% schools in the country — History {+0.26) and Languages (+0.8) petformed
particularly well. Maths was strong {(+:0.3) and whilst English Literalure results were in line with expectations,
unfortunalely our English Language results dipped which brought our overall English Progress score significantly
down on previous years although broadly in fine with expectations (-0.1).

Sixth Form Besults

Trustess will be aware that the Academy offers both traditional A Levels and Applied A Levels (also known as
BTEG Level 3). The government has started publishing results separately as ‘academic’ results and 'vocational
restilts,

" Post 16 Historical & Gontextual Data

Academlc : 2013 2014 2015 2016
AZ - number of students 64 80 67 77
A2-%ofgradesatA*to B 37.8% 47.7% 59% ‘A8%
A2 -%ofgradesatA* o E 96.9% 98.7% 100% 99%
A level av pts score 209 213 228 222
A2 - ALPS grade 6 5 1 2
Vocational

Yocational (BTEC) - number of students 125 a0 86 78
Vocational - % of grades at Distinction®/ Distinction 42.8% 54.7% 65% 82%
Vocational - % of Grades at Distinction * Merit. 84% 92% 91.5% 97.7%
Vocational av pts score 204 214 222 239
BTEGC « ALPS T Score 5 4 3 K

N.B. ALPS Grade 1 = outstanding fop 1% schools; 3 = excsllent top 20% schools; 4 = Very Good Progress; 5=
Quiite Good ‘

A-Level/BTEC 2016 Resuits key points summary:

. Results are slightly down on 2015 but the prior Atlainment (APS) of the cohott was weakey (6,75

compared fo 6,1 in 2015)
. Overall A-level students achieved outstanding success which places our sixth form within the top 10%

schools in the country for progress made.
. The VA has risen from 0.41 to 0.44 which means onh average students achieved 0.44 of a grade higher

than national averages for students of similar ability.

. BTEC students success was also very impressive as reflected in the ALPS Grade 8 (Top 25% Nationally)

s The VA for BTEC has tsen from 0,20 (2015} to 0.65 (2016} which s very strong,

. Top A-level for Prograss: A, Biology, Business History Sociology, Economics, Psychology, Media and
Geography

. Top BTEC for Progress: Travel & Tourism, Health and Soclal Care, Spott, Applied Science, Music Tech
and Business. ’

It should be notad that the excellent results are reflected in the number of students securing university places,
with 8% securing Russell Group Universities, Whilst this is down from the previous year as explained above, this

reflects a lower ability profile on entry,

To ensure that standards are continually raised the Academy, the Governing Body and the Leadership Team:

. Operates a robust quality assurance calendar which monitors the quality of teaching and leatning and
assessment
. Is visited, scrutinised and supported by a Logal Authority Link Officer and independent Consulants
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GRAND UNION MULT] ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantea)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

. Undertakes a rigorous review of attainment using RAISEONLINE and FFT and ALPS to measure the
progress of students paying particular regard o thelr achlevement on entry and levels of progress secured

To ensure that standards are continually raised the Academy opsrates a confinuous programme of holiday
boosters which any Underachleving studenis are requested to attend, In additlon the Academy operates a
focused programme of lesson obsefvations, visits by consultants are rigorous including a comparison of value
added results from entry to Key Stage 3 to GCSE and from GCSE to A Level,

Additionally, sevaral teachers are engaged in Leadership Davelopment courses and Master's Lavel research,
We are the lead school [ the LA for Leadership Davelopment and provide support for this in a variety of ways
e.g. full payment or subsicies for saurses, patd study leave and we purchase resources when appropriate, Those
completing the NPQML and NPQSL with the Institute of Education have access fo in school coaches and their
tutor sessions are facilitated on stta. All staff are given the opportunity to angags in school based action research
which Is shared with the whole slaff. Furthermore, the Academy was Invited by the London Leadership Sirategy
fo joln a group of cutstanding London schools o share best practice through a programme called Going 4 Great,

Our engeing focus on attendance s oritical to ouwr mission of rafsing standards. Although the overall attendance
for 2015-18 decreased by 0,7% 1o 95.2%, It remains above the Ealing average.

Golng Concemn

After making appropriate engulries, the Governing Body has a reasonable expectation that the Academy has
adeqguate resotrees to continue in operational existence for the foresseable fultre. For this reason it continues
to adopt the golng concetn hasls In preparing the financial statements, Further details regarding the adoption of
the going conceyn hasls can be found In the Statemant of Accounting Policies.

Financial Review
Financial Review and Key Performance Indicators

Most of the Academy's revente Is obtained from the Education Funding Agency {EFA) in the farm of recurrent
grants, the use of which Is restricted to parifcular purpoges. The funding received during 12 months ended 31
August 2018 and the associated expendilure are shown as restricted funds In the Statement of Financial
© Activitles, The Academy also recelves funding for fixed asgets from the EFA. In accordance with Accounting and
Reporting by Gharllies: Statement of Recommaended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Repording Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland, FRS 102,
Charitles SORP (FRS 102}, stich funding is shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income In
the fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the
expected useful life of the assets concerned. During the period ended 31 August 2018, there was an operating
defictt of £1,464,321 (2015: £151,807) which was in main due to an increase in the Local Government Pension
Scheme {LGPS) deficlt by £3,078,000. At 31 August 2016 the nat book value of fixed assels was £18,225,741
(£17,337,232) as shown in note 13 to the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for providing
educalion and the associated support services to the pupils of the Academy.

The lavel of expendilure on permanent and supply staff used during the year was 78.2% of overall revenue,

Although this percentage has Increased slightly in comparison with 2014-15 (78%), this Is malnly due to the fall in

funding. Furthermore, 78.2% is still a vary good leval and allows further investmeant Into a rlch and varlad

curriculum, an impressive IT Infrastructure, the maintenance and development of a large sile as well as the
~purchase of professiochal services, .

The working captital decreased to 1: 3.68 (1: 5.14). This was mainly due 1o a higher amount of creditors at year
end mainly due to the ongolng bullding project. Subsequenily, the bank balance was Ih a healthler position In
addition to recelving capital advances for this project. Although the working capltal desreased, the revenus cash
surplus was still In a healthy position to cover short term regquirements to be met but also helps towards
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GRAND UNION MULTI AGADEMY TRUST
(A Campany Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

balancing a 8 yaar budget. The Trustees are aware that the ongoing volatite nature of funding combined with
increasing costs require the utmost Impottance to be placed on prudence and regular forecasting.

The Acadermy's non-teaching staff are entitled to membership of the Local Ciovernment Pension Scheme. The
Academy is part of the London Borough of Ealing pooling scheme which allows the Academy to contribute a
reduced rate than the rate caloulated upon conversion for Employer Pension Contributions, However the
Academy pays an additional monthly lump sum due to a deficit upon conversion. The latest actuarial report
highlights losses of £3,078,000 with overall fiability increasing fo £6,508,000 as at 31 August 2016.

Financial and Risk Management Objectives and Policies

As an Academy funded directly by the DfE, funding sireams are considered to be reasonably safe and secure.
The risk mainly arises from changes in government poliey and funding levels. However the key risk is falling
levels of funding and numbers on toll. The Trustees have a tisk register which is managed and reviewad an a
regular basis, Numbers on roll are reported fo the governing body termly through the Headteachers Report.
Trustees are therefore kept fully aware of any trends in changas of numbers on roll and hence fully awars of any
impanding risk to financial health,

To overcome a teduction In funding combined with Increasing liabililies such as pension and national Insurance
costs, the Academy has baen golng through a procass of redundancles to ensure a sustainable budget,
Furthermore, the Academy has increased the Published Admission Number with an additional 150 studenis
expected by Septembet 2020 and therefore an increased levsl of funding with minimal cutlay due to an increase
in class size. Cash flow is monitored weekly by the Academy and budgets presented to the Trustees at every
finance committee meeting. The Academy has genera! reserves which enable it to plan for future capital projects
and enable safeguarding against & reduction in funding. The Academy has strong Iinternal conirol syslems in
place and chooses 1o have more than the 3 compulsory Responsible Officer visits per year la maintain clarily,
transparency and confidence of all internal and external stakeholders.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Grand Union Mulli Academy Trust is fully subscribed at entry level and main school numbers on roll are
sustained year on yeat which currently represents a low risk. Sixth Form funding will continue to reduce over the
years due to it being brought in line with FE Colleges, hence this represents a risk of loss i funding. Shth Form
humbers oh roll have not reached full capacity but are conslstently high which continues to balance the situation.

The Academy Trust practices through its Board, namely the governing body and the constituted subcommittess,
risk management principles. Any major risks highlighted at any sub-committee ate brought to the main Hoard
with proposed mitigating actions and they continue to be reported until the risk is adeguately mitigated.

The governing body accepts managed risk as an inevitable part of lts eperations but maintains an abjestive not
to run unacceptable levels of risk In any area. The subjective nature of this process requires major risks to be
resolved by the goveming body collectively, whilst mare minor risks are dealt with by the SLT,

Reserves Policy

The Trustess have agreed a Reserves Polley for the school and review this on an annual basis. The review

ncompasses the nature of income and expenditure sireams and the need to match income with cormmitments.
Demand on the Acadamy’s reserves {restricted and unrestricted) will vary over the coming years. The Trustees
have determined that the appropriate level of in year contingancy or ‘teserves' should be a minimum 10% of the
total budget (approximately £1,000,000). The reason for this is 1o provide sufficient working capital to cover
delays between spending and recelpt of grants and fo provide a cushion to deal with unexpected emergencles
such as urgent malntenance, Any additional reserves will be earmarked for future projects In line with the
Acadsmy Development Plan and used to batance the 3 year hudget.
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

Rastrictions oh GAG carry forward balancas have been removed, which means that the Academy is able to carry
forward all surpluses at year end, However the Academy will not compromise the education and development of
current students by setting aside an unrealistic lavel of current funds for future projects. The Academy has plans
In place to meet on-going fiabilities of the pension deficit as they fall due,

At 81 August 2016 the total funds comprised:

Unrestricted: £118,873
Restrioted: Fixed asset funds £18,818,704
GAG £043,561

Pension reserve  {£6,508,000}
Other restricled  £465,536

The deficli on the pension reserve relates to the non-eaching stall pension scheme whete, unliks the teachers
scheme, separate asseis are held 1o fund future liabllities as discussed in note 24. The deficit can be met in the
longer term from any combination of increased employer or employes contributions as mentioned previously,
increased government funding or changes to scheme bensfits. The restricted funds will be spent in accordance
with the tenns of the particular funds. Unrestricted funds are for use on the general pusposes of the Academy, al
the discretion of the Trustees, and represent 3.9% of Acadamy axpenditure with revenue represanting 3.5% of
lotal revenue, hence a reduction In this fund from last year,

Investment Policy

Thare are currenily no Investments and no Investment Palley In place, Trustees balance fulure funding with
current requirements before making an Informed decision on an annual basis. This will continue to be a point of
discussion on a perfodic basts, Surplus funds are considered for transfer to deposii acceunts as appropriate.

Plans for Future Pericds

Grand Union Multi Acadamy Trust will continue stelving 1o Improve the levels of perfotmance of its sludsnts al all
levels and will continue its offorts to ensure all students are secure in thelr next steps on leaving the Academy
with regards to employment or continuing in training of higher education. The Academy continuously strives to be
at the forefront of Innovation in education and we are perpetually revising our curriculum ofter to suit the needs of
our studariis.

Grand Union Multl Academy Trust has an excellent reputation for the parsonal development and well-being of its
students and staff and this will continue to be priotity, The Academy will continue to look at its accommodation
and plan for the redevelopment of areas of the school slte whete bulidings have reached the end of their useful

life,

Grand Union Mulll Academy Trust aims to provide the opportunity for Increased student success beyond the
boundarios of our Academy. As a specialist School for Sciences and Sport, we are al the forefront of plans
aiming to establish ways to benefit the wider community in these areas through links with primary sshools and
some sacondary schools who have direct access 1o our facllittes, currleular materials and the experilse of our
staff,

Furtharmore, Grand Union Multi Academy Trust is a DIE approved sponsor and has collaborated with
Woodlands Academy to become the founding member of Grand Union Multi Acadamy Trust from 1 September
20186.
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Auditor

I so far as the Trusteses are aware;

. There I3 no relevant audit information of which Grand Union Mulli Academy Trust's auditor is unaware
. The Trustees have laken all steps hat they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audlt information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information

MHA Macintyre Hudson are deemed fo be re-appointed under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006.

The Trustees Report, incorporating a Stratagle Report, was approved by order of the members of the governing
body on’1 Decwwbier 22 b and signed on its behalf by:

.......... Y W@mﬂz\:‘*:r

Mrs Fay Denise Haras-Gummer Mr G rry Wadwa
Chalr of Trustees Accounting Offlcer
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As trustees, we acknowledge we have averall responsibility for ensuring that Grand Union Multl Academy Trust
has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwiss. However such a system is designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of fallure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstaternent of loss.

The Governing Body has delegated the day-to-day responsibllity to the Headteacher, as Accounting Officer, for
ensuring financlal controls conform with the requiremants of both propriety and good flnancial managament and
in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned 1o it in the funding agreementi between Grand
Unlon Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Fcucation. They are also responsible for reparting to
the Governing Body any material weaknesses or breakdowns In internal control.

GOVERNANCE

The information on governanca Included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibliiies. The Goveming Body has formally met 4 fimes during the year,
Attendance during the year at meetings of the Governing Body was as follows:

Trusies Mestings attonded Out of a possible

Mr Rabindara Nath Pathak 3 4
Mrs Fay Denlse Haras-Gummer, Chair {lo 4 4
31/08/2016)

Mr Kewal S8ingh Kallha, Vice Chair {to 3
31/08/2016)

Ms Jan Moorhouse, Vice Chair {from
61/08/2016)

s Apinder Sidhu

Mr Sved Zahid Al

Mr Davinder Kumar Anand

Mrs Saranjit Kaur Bangar

Mr Arlf Hayat

Mrs inder Prakash Kaur

Mr Sunil Seewon Prayag

Mr Umesh Sharma

Mr Narinder Singh Shinhmar

Ms Joy Spreadbury

Mrs Jyoti Subharwal

Mrs Arfa Ayyub

Mr Gerry Wadwa, Head Teacher & Accounting
Officer

Mr Sajjad Qureshi

Ms Christine Rose Dickson, Chalr (from
01/09/2016)

Dr Janny Francls 0 0
Mr Shahbaz Halder 0 ]
Mrs Denise Joy Maloney, Vice Chalr (from 0 0
01/08/2016)

Mr David Millican 0 0

f-9
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The Governing Body also delegates responsibility to its sub-committees: Finance Committes, Curriculum
Commiites, Personnel Committee, Premises Committee and Community Spoits Committee. These sub-
committess are required to meet on a termly basis {i.e. 3 thnes a year) as a minimum. All these sub-committees
formally met at least 3 times during the perlod ended 81 August 20186. Jtems discussed at sub-committes
mestings ara then raported and ratified at the next Full Governing Body meeting.
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNAMCE STATEMENT {continued)

The Finance Committee is a sub-committee of the Full Governing Body. This committee is responsible for
monltoring and making recommendations to the Governing Body on matters related to Finance, The Chair of
Finance, Mr Sunil Seewon Prayag, is a qualified accountant,

Attendance at meetings In the year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Qut of a possible -

Mr Sunil Seewon Prayagd (Chairman) 4
Mirs Fay Denise Haras-Gummer

Mr Kewal Sihgh Kaliha

Ms Jan Moothouse

Mr Gerry Wadwa, Head Teacher & Accounting
Officar

Mrs Alison Lusuardi {Deputy Headlsacher)

Mr Shahbaz Haider {Finance Diractor)

Ms Ranjan Bhardwa (Senlor Finance Officer)

. thon
;mmn e

o1 oo
[9)1

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

As Accouinting Officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer uriderstands that value for menay refers to the educational
and wider socletal oulcomes achigved in return for the taxpayer rescurces recelved.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy's use of Its resources has providad good value for maney
during each academic year, and reports to the Governing Body where value for monsy can be impraved,
inciuding the use of benchmarking data where appropriate, The Accounting Officer for the Academy has
delivared improved value for money duting the year by:

Achievements and Performance

As previously slated, Progress over ime by students was significantly positive for 20156-16 at +0.24 when
compared with schools on a national level, .

The Grand Union Multi Academy Trust Offer

Grand Unlon Multi Academy Trust continued to provids a rich and varled curriculum to ensure needs of all
students were met, The aim of all Trustees, sonlor leadars and members of staff is to not only provide a well
rounded curriculum, but to go the exira mille and ensura students are ready for the wider society upon completion
of their studies. This Included:

Over 140 curriculum and non curriculum based trips for our students

Continued investment in the IT infrastructure

Mare students promded with worls experience opportumties through vocatlonal courses

A range of morning, lunch and after scheal clubs with attendanca continuing 1o excead expactation
Increasad number of hooster classes / gifted & lalented provision

Continued Investment in offeting careers advice, counselling and educational psychologist provision
The use of Independent consullants and partners to continuously sorutinise the teaching and learning
standards

. Ongoing capltal improvements to facilities such as the ongoing Main Teaching Block Project, Boys Tollets
and Secluslon Refutblshments as well as a new Sclence Lab improving the schosling experience for all
staksholders

L N
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

Benchmarking

Benchmarking 2013-14 data was made available by the EFA and this aliowed a comparison of key areas io be
made for the second time since converslon to Academy status. The infoermation has been used as one of the key
drivers during staff redundancies over the last 2 years and will confinued to be used as a key document in futurs,
Furthermote, a number of operational budgets have been scrutinised such as IT, Facilities, Adverfising,
Resources, Catering and TripsfActivities to ensure the school continues to balance a 3 year budget by achieving
value for money.

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control [s deslgned to tmanage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate aHf risk of
fallure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore anly provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelthood of
those rleks heing realised and the impact shauld they be reallsed, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place In Grand Union Mulii Academy Trust for the year
1 Seplember 2015 to 31 August 2016 and up fo the date of approval of the annual report and financial
statements. :

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The Governing Body has reviewed the key risks to which the Acadeny is exposed together with tha aperating,
flnancial and complianca controls that have bean Implemented to mitigate those risks. The Governing Body is of
the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evalualing and managing the Academy's
significant risks, that has baen in place for the year 1 September 2015 o 31 August 2016 and up to the date of
approval of the annual reporl and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Governing

Body.
THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Academy's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular managernent Information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a systern of delegation and accountabiity.
In particular, it inclides:

) comprahansive budgsling and monitoting systems with an annual budget and petiodic financlal reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Finance Cormittes and rafifled at the Full Gaverning Body;

* ragular reviews by the Finance Committes of reporis which Indicate financlal performance against the

forecasts and of major purchase plans, caplial works and expenditure programmes;

satling targets to measura financial and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment} guldelines.

delegation of authorlty and segregation of duties;

identificallon and management of risks.

L ] a o

The Governing Body has consldered the need for a specific Internaf audit function and has decided to appeint
CEFM as internal auditor.

The Internal auditor's role Includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Academy's financial systems on a termly basis. The internal auditor reports to the Governing Body on the
operation of the systems of control as well as making recommendations on lmprovement. GEFM have
completed thelr 3 standard visits as well as 1 addifional visit to audil the Sports Centre in 2015-16. In parlicular
the checks cartled out in the current period Included:

. Tasling of payroll systems
. Testing of purchase systems
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT {continued)

Testing of the fixed assel register with physlcal checks

Testing of Income and oiher revents

Testing of centrol accountbank reconcliiations

Checks of governance struature and review of FGB and finance commiltee minutes

Checking of declaration of interest forms and proper and regular use of public funds
Checking of reports given to the finance commities

Review of the Academy Finance Manual including all policies and effective oversight
Checking of Hsk register and buslness continuity plan

All of the above for the Sporis Centre alse during the additional audit day

- & & 0w B s B & »

The following shows the number of recommendations made during the Responsible Officer visits.

Responsible Officer Visit 1 = 4 low risk recommendations (all items now in place)
Responsible Officer Visit 2 = 3 low fsk recommendations (all items now in place}
Responsible Officer Visit 3 = 4 low risk recommeandations (all liems now in place)
Responsible Officer Visit 4 = 4 Jow risk recommendations {all ftems now in place} (Sporte Centre audit)

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

As Accounting Officer, the Headleacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. Duting the year in question the review has been informed by,

the work of the internal auditor,

the work of the external auditors;

the Finance Gommitlee

the Financlal Management and Governance Evaluation (FMGE);

the work of the managers within the Academy who have responsibifity for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework 1.e. Senior Leadership Team and Finance Director,

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Finance Commitiee and a plan to address the low risk recommendations whilst ensuring
coniinuous improvament of the system is in place.

@ & Bw & @

Approved by order of the mambers of the Governing Body on T bgcafz!%f and signed on their behalf, by
Py

”\LWMM,E—i ......... @1’—

{rs Fay Denise Haras-Gummer Mr Gerry Wadwa
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guaranieg)

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of Grand Union Multl Academy Trust | have considered my responsibifity to notify the
Academy Governing Body and the Education Funding Agency of matertal irregulaiily, impropriety and non-
compliance with EFA terms and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement In place between the
Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the
requirernents of the Academles Flnanclal Handbook 2015,

| confirm thai | and the Academy Governing Body are able lo Identify any material irregular or improper use of
funds by the Academy, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding undet the
Academy’s funding agreament and the Academies Financial Handbook 2015.

| confirm that no instances of material Irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these wilt be nofified to the Governing

Body and EFA,

RElesuihsnannny

My Gerry Wadwa
Accaunting Officer

TrEssyIvaRsREIRIS Y PR
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

The Trustees {who act as governors of Grand Union Multi Academy Trust and are also the directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Group Strategic
Report, the Trustees' Report and the financlal statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Dirsction
issued by the Education Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.,

Company law requires the Trustees fo prepare financial statements for each financial year, which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the academy and of the incoming resources and application of resourcss,
including the Income and expenditura, of the academy for that perfod. In preparing these financial statements,
the Trustees are required to:

¢ select stitable accounting policies and then apply them cansistently;

e ohserve the methods and principles of the Charilies SORP 2015 and the Academies' Accounis Directlon
2015 o 2016;

* make Judgments and accounting asiimates that are reascnable and prudent;

* state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards (FRS 102) have heen followed, subject o any
matetial depaitures disclosed and explained In the financial statements;

® prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Academy will continue in business,

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequats accounting records that are sufficlent to show and explain
the Academy's fransactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
academy and enable them {o ensure that the finanicial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the academy and henice for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detestion of fraud and other Irragularities,

The Trustess are responstble for ensurlng that In its conduct and operation the academy applies financial and
other controls, which conform with the requiremants both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsible for enswring grants received from the EFA/DIE have been applied for the purposes
intended.

The Trustess are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
Included on the Academy's website, Legislfatlon in the Unlted Kingdom goveening the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from leglsiation In other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Governlng Body and sighed on fis behalf by

Mrs Fay Denlse Haras-Gummer
Chair of Trustoes

Date: - 12~ 201k
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TBUST
(A Company Limited by Guaraniee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF GRAND
UNICN MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

We have audited the financial statements of Grand Union Mulli Academy Trust for the year ended 31 August
2016 which comptise the group Statement of Financlal Activities, the group and Academy Balance Shests, the
group Cash Flow Statement and the related notes. The financial reporting frameworic that has been applied in
thelr praparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice) including FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland" and the Academies Accounts Direction 2015 {o 2018 Issued by the Education Funding Agency.

This report ks made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006, Our audlt work has been undettaken so that we might state fo the charitable
company's members those matters we are reguived to state to them in an Auditors’ Report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respongihility to anyone other than
the charitable company and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the apinlon we have
formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF TRUSTEES AND AUDITORS

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the Trustees {who are also the directors of
the Academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for belng satisfied that they give a frue and fair view.

We have been appointed auditor under the Companles Act 2006 and repert in accordance with this Act. Our
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements ih accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland). Thoge standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethlcal Standards for Auditors. _

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit Involves obtalning avidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financlal statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from materlal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This heludes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group's
and the parent Academy's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the
reasonableness of aignificant accounting estimates made by the Trustess; and the overall presentation of the
tinancial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information In the Trustees' Report to
identify material Inconsistencies with the audited financial statemenis and to Identify any information that is
apparently materially incorrsct based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acqulred by us in the
course of performing the audit. if we become aware of any apparent materlal misstatements or inconsistencies
wa consider the implications for our report.

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our oplnion the financial statements:

* glva & trus and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affalrs as at 31 August 2016 and of the
group's incoming resoutces and application of resources, Including its income and expenditure, for the
year theh ended; '

s have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and _

e have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, the Charities SORP
2015 and the Acadomies Acceunts Direction 2015 to 2016 issued by the Education Funding Agency.
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GRAND UMION MULT! ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limlied by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF GRAND
UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

QPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

in our opinlon the Information given In the Trustees' Report, incorporating the Group Strategic Roport, for the
financial year for which the flnancial siatsments are prepared is conslstent with the financial statements.

MATTERS OGN WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nathing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companles Act 2006 requires us to
repart fo you if, in our opinlon:

] the parént charitable Academy has not kept adequate accounting records, or returns adequale for our
audit have not been recelved from branches hot visited by us; or

] the parent charltable Academy financial statements are not in agresment with the accounting records and
telutns; or

. cerlaif disgibsures of Trustees' remuneration speclfied by law are not made; or

ha\./rs hot recalved all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
g

s

Sharkey FCA {Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of

MHA Maclntyre Hudson

Charterad Accountants & Statutory Auditor

Bren

Euro House,
1394 High Road
London

N20 QYZISL-DQWBU TJoll .

Data!
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GRAND UNION MULT! ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO GRAND
UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letier dated 1 September 2015 and further to the requirements
of the Education Funding Agency (EFA) as includad In the Acadsmies Accounts Dirsction 2015 to 2016, we have
cartled out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whother the expendilure dishursed and income
received by Grand Union Multi Academy Trust during the year 1 September 2015 to 31 August 2016 have been
applied to the purposes Identified by Parliament and the financial fransactions conform to the authorities which
govern thern.

This report is made solely to Grand Union Mulli Academy Trust and the EFA In accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter, Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Grand Union hultl Academy Trusi
and the EFA those maliers we are required to state in a report and for ne other purpose. To the fullest extant
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Grand Union Multi Academy
Trust and the EFA, for our work, for this repert, or for the conclusion we have farmed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST'S ACCOUNTING
OFFIGER AND THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANT

The Accounting Officer is respensible, under the requirements of Grand Union Multi Academy Trust's funding
agresment with the Secretary of Stale for Educatlon dated, and the Academies Financial Handbook extant trom
1 Septernber 2015, for ensuring that expendilure dishursed and Income received is applied for the purposes
Intendad by Parllament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for thls engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and tha
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2015 lo 2016, We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which stiggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
Income received during the year 1 September 2015 to 31 August 2016 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parllament or that the financlal transactions do not conform to the authotities which govern them.

APPROACH

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academles Accounts Direction 2015 o 2016 issued by
the EFA. We performed a limited assurance engagemsnht as defined in our engagement lstter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as fo obiain information and
explanations In order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to oxpress a negative cenclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance sngagement is more limlted In scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently doss not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy's Income and expendilure,

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includss;

+ reviewing the Minutes of the meetings of the Governing Body and other evidence made available to us,
relevant to our consideration of regulatity,

+ 8 review of the objectives and activities of the academy, with reference to the income streams and other
information available to us as audltors of the academy;
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO GRAND
UNION MULTE ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION FUNDING AGENCY (continued)

- testing of & sample of payroll payments to siaff;
« testing of a sample of payments fo suppliers and other third parties
+ festing of a sample of grants recelved and other Income streams; and

» evaluating the internal control procedures and reporfing lines, and testing as appropriate, and maldng
appropriate enquiries of the Accounting Officer.

CONCLUSION

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income recelved during the year 1 September 2015 fo 31 August 2018 have nof been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and jhe finaneial fransactions do not sonform to the authoritiss which

govern them. WN

Repotting Accountant
MHA Maclntyre Hudson
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audltor

Euro Housa,
1394 High Road
Lendon

N20 9YZ

Date: l gt ..DQ-CG/VV‘W ’)/E‘)L‘o '
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES INCORPORATING INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

Restricted
Unrestricted  Raestricted  fixed asset Total Tatal
funds funds funds funds funds
2016 2016 2016 2016 2015
Note £ £ £ £ g
INCOME FRON:
Donatlons and capital grants 2 - 6,265 1,715,131 1,721,396 475,064
Charitable activities 5 . 10,728,897 - 10,728,997 10,668,380
Other trading activities 3. 395,508 25,591 - 421,500 468,002
Investments 4 2,556 " - 2,556 2,030
TOTAL INCOME 398,065 10,761,253 1,715,131 12,874,449 11,612,376
EXPENDITURE ON:
Charltable activities 7 162,935 10,456,846 421,242 11,041,023 11,168,220
Other expendiiure 6 273,316 - 9,694 283,010 204,249
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 436,251 10,456,846 430,936 11,324,033 11,460,469
NET INCOME /
{EXPENDITURE) BEFCRE
TRANSFERS {38,186) 304,407 1,284,195 1,550,416 151,807
Transfers between Funds 17 - (197,279 197,279 - -
NET INCOME /
(EXPENDITURE) BEFORE
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES {38,186) 107,128 1,481,474 1,550,416 151,907
Actuarial losses on defined
banefit pension schemes 24 - (3,604,000) - (3,004,000) {31,000)
NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS {38,186) {(2,898,872) 1,481,474 (1,453,584) 120,907
RECONCILIATION QF FUNDS:
Total funds brought forward 157,858 (2,202,031) 17,337,230 15,293,058 15,172,151
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED 119,678  (5,008,903) 18,818,704 13,839,474 15,293,058

FORWARD

The notas on pages 26 o 50 form part of these financial statements,
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07800029

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2016

2016
Noie £ £ b
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assels 13 18,226,478
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 15 304,801 306,730
Cash at bank and in hand 2,604,825 1,413,870
2,909,726 1,720,860
CREDITORS: amcunts falfing dus within
one year 18 {788,730} {334,834)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,120,296
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 20,347,474
Defined benefit pension schems liability 24 {6,508,000)
WNET ASSETS INCLUDING PENSION
SCHEME LIABILITIES 13,839,474
FUNDS OF THE ACADEMY
Restricted funds:
Restricted funds 17 1,408,087 1,227,969
Restricted fixed asset funds ‘ 17 18,818,704 17,337,230
Restricted funds excluding pension liability 20,227,801 18,565,199
Pansion reserve {6,508,000) (3,430,600)
Total restricted funds 13,719,801
Unrestricted funds 17 119,673
TOTAL FUNDS 13,839,474
The financial statemenis were approved by the Trustees, and authorised

T Decemby Zolb and are signed on their behalf, by:

ilrs Fay Denise Haras-Gummer
Chair of Trustees

Mr Gerry Wadwa
Accounting Officer

The notes on pages 26 to 50 form part of these financlal statements.

||||||||||||||||||||||||||

|||||||

for

2015

17,337,232

1,385,826

18,723,058
(8,430,000)

15,293,058

15,135,199
157,859

15,293,058

issue, oh
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

{A Company Limited by Guaranes)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07800029

ACADEMY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2016

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets
fnvestments

CURRENT ASSETS
Deblors ’
Cash at banlk and in hand

Note

13
14

15

CHEDITORS: amounts falling due within

ong year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

16

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
Befined bensafit pension scheme liability 24

NET ASSETS INCLUDING PENSION

SCHEME LIABILITEES_

FUNDS OF THE ACADEMY

Restricted funds:
Rastricted funds

Restricted fixed asset funds

Restricted funds excluding penslon asset

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted funds

TOTAL FUNDS

2016
£ g
18,188,780
1
18,188,781
359,306
2,575,752
2,935,058
(779,318)
2,155,740
20,344,521
{6,508,000)
13,836,521
1,405,322
18,781,006
20,186,328
(6,508,000)
13,678,328
158,193

13,838,521

2015
£ g
17,309,507
e
17,309,508
308,790
1,386 521
1,703,311
(319,548)
1,383,768
18,693,276
(3,430,000)
15,268,275
1,227,969
17,309,507
18,537,476
(3,430,000}
15,107,476
155,800
15,263,276

The finanolal statemenls were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue, on

“T Decgetoer 2olb

Mrs Fay Denise Haras-Gummer

Chakr of Trustees

and are signed on thelr behalf, by:

............ [Ju.-u"unnnnn-nnlnuuu

Mr Gerry Wadwa
Accounting Officer

The notes on pages 26 to 50 form part of these financlal statements.

Page 24



GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

2016 2015
Note £ £
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating actlvities 19 2,511,137 580,539
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (1,320,182) {603,162)
Not cash used in investing activities (1,320,182) (603,162)
Change in ¢cash and cash equivalents In the year 1,190,955 {22,623)
Cash and cash equivalents brought forward 1,413,670 1,436,493
Cash and cash equivaients carried forward 20 2,604,825 1,413,870
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GRAND UNION MULT| ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

1.2

A summary of the principal aceounting policles adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out balow.

Basis of preparation of financial statetnents

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit eniity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporiing
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Repotting by
Charitles: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financlal Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland (FRS
102) {Gharities SORF (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2015 to 2016 issued by EFA,
the Charltles Act 2011 and the Companias Act 2006.

Grand Unien Multl Acaderny Trust constifutes a pubilic benefit entity as definad by FRS 102.

Tha Siatement of Financial Activities (SQFA) and Balance Sheet consolidate the financial
statements of the Academy and Its subsidiary undertaking, Featherstone Sports Centre Limited. The
resulls of the subsidiaty are consolidaled on a line by line basis.

No separate SOFA has been presented for the Academy alone as permiited by seclion 408 of the
Companies Act 2008,

Firet time adoption of FRS 102

These financlal staternenis are the first financial statements of Grand Union Mulli Academy Trust
prepared In accordance with Financial Reporfing Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Iretand’ (FRS 102) and the Charities SORP 2015 (SORP
2015). The financial statements of Grand Union Multi Academy Trust for the year ended 31 August
2015 wers prepared in accordance with previous Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {{UK
GAAP'} and SORP 2005,

Some of the FRS 102 recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements and
accounting policy choices differ from previous UK GAAP. Consequently, the Trustees have
amended certain accounting policies to comply with FRS 102 and SORP 2015,

Reconciliations to previous UK GAAP for the comparafive figures are included in note 28.

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements consolidate the accounts of Grand Union Mulli Academy Trust and all of its
subsidiary undertakings ('subsidiaries').

The Academy Trust has ialken advantage of the exemption contained within section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006 not ko present its own Income and Expenditure Account.

The consalidated Statement of Financlal Activities Is for the group as a whole. The deflcit on the A
income and expenditure account for the year deall with in the accounts of the Academy Trust was

£(1,423,346) (2015 -~ £157,609):
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GRAND UNION MULT! ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.3

1.4

Gioing concern

The Tiustees assess whether the use of going concern is approptiate, l.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions thai may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy to continue as & going concern, The Trustees rake this assessment in respect of a
period of st least one year from the date of autharlsation for issue of the financlal statements and
have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncerainties about the academy trust's abilily to
continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the golng concern basts of accounting in
preparing the financial statements,

Income

All income ls recognised once the Acadery has entitlernent to the tncome, it is probable that the
income will be received and the amount of Income recelvable can be measured reliably.

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a recelvable basis. The balance of
income received for spaclfic purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance Sheet. Where Income is received in advance of entillement of receipt, lis
recognition s deferred and Included in creditors as deferred Incoms. Where ehiitfemant occurs
before Income Is received, the income Is accruad.

General Annual Grant is recognised In full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the yeat for
which It Is racelvable and any abatement in respect of the perlod is dedusted from income and
recoghised as a liability. Capital grants are recognised when there Is entilement and are not
deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended. Unspent amotnts of capital grant are
reflectad in the balance in the restricted fixed asset fund.

Sponsorship income provided to the Academy which amounis 1o a donation is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable, where there is probabiiity of
raceipt and It is meastrable.

Donations are recognised on a recelvable basls where there are ho performance related conditions,
there is probablilty of receipt and the amount can be reliably meastired.

Other Income, including the spotts centre Income from the subsidiary, is recognised in the perlod in
which It is recelvable and to the extent the goods have heen provided or on completion of the
sarvice.
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

1

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

1.5

1.6

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or consttuctive obligation to transfer econamic
benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in
settiement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably, Expenditure fs classified by
activity, The costs of each aclivity are made up of the lotal of direct costs and shared costs,
including support costs Involved in undettaking each activily. Direct costs atiributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to maore than one activity
and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between thoss
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Ceniral staff costs are allocated on the
basls of time spent, and depreclation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

Charitable activiies and Governance costs are cosls incurred on the Academy's educational
operations, including support costs and costs relating to the governance of the Academy
apportioned to charitable activities,

Costs of generating funds are costs incurred [n atiracting voluntary income and incuired in trading
activitles to raise funds.

All resources expendad are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,
Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

All assets costing more than £5,000 are capitalised as tangible fixed agsets and are carrled at cost,
net of depreciation and any provision for Impairment,

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquirad with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government of from the private sector, they are Included in the Balance Sheel at cost and
depreciated over thelr expecied useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached
to the funding requlring the continuad use of the asset, the related grants ate credifed to a restricted
fixed agsat fund In the Statement of Financial Activities and carrled forward In the Balance Sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assels Is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Statement of Financlal Activilies. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestrictad
funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestrictad fund.

A review for impairment of a fixed assel Is carried out If events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying vallie of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shorlfalls between the cartying
value of fixed assets and thelr recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities,

Assets in the ceurse of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assels is not
charged until they are brought Into use.
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1,

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.7

1.8

1.9

Tangible fixed assets are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provigion for impairment,
Depreciation is nol charged on freehold land. Depreciatlon is provided at rates calculated to write off
the cast of fixed assets, less their estimatod residual value, over their expected useful lives on the
following bases: ‘

Leasehold property - B0 years straight line method

Equipment - Byears straight line method

Compuiter equipment - 4 years straight line method

Loasehoid land - Not depreciated
[nvestments

Fixed asset investments are a form of fihanclal Instrument and are initially recognised at their
transaction cost and subsequently measured at fair value at the Balance Sheet date, unless fair
value canhot be measured reliabily in which case it is measured at cost less Impalrment. Investment
gains and losses, whether realised or unrealised, are combined and shown in the heading
‘Galns/(losses) on Investmants’ in the Statament of Financial Activities.

Invesimenis In subsldiarios are valued at cost less provision for impairment. The academy's
shareholding in the wholly owned subsidiary, Featherstong Sports Centre Limited, is included in the

balance sheet at cost less impalrment. There is no readily available market for the share and the
cost of valuation would exeeed benefit.

Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged 1o the Statement of Financial Activitias on a straight line
hasis over the lease term.

Interast receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit Is Included when receivable and the amount can be measured
reliably by the Academy; this is normally upen nofification of the interest paid or payable by the Bank,

1.10 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prapayments are valued al the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

1.11 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short term highly liquid investments with a short
maluwrity of three months or less from the date of acquisitlon or opening of the deposit or similar
account.
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

1

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.12 Liabilities and provisions

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance Shest date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfor of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the
amourt of the settlement can ba estimated reliably, Liabifities are recognised at the amount that the
Academy anficipates it will pay to setfle the debt or the amount it has recelved as advanced
payments for the goods or sarvices it must provide. Provisions are measured at the best estimats of
the amounis required fo setle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money Is
material, the provislon is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax
discount rate thal reflects the fisks specific to the Hability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognisad within interest payable and similar charges.

1.13 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy are provided by the Teachers' Pensian Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Govemment Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes
and the assets are hsld separately from those of the Academy.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employsss' working lives with the Academy In such a way thal the pension costis a
substantlially level percentage of cunment and future pensionable payrofl. The cohtribuiions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the hasls of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method, As stated In note 24, the TPS is a muiti-employer scheme and there is
insufficient Information available to use defined bensfit accounting, The TPS is therefore reated as
a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recegnised In the
petiod 1o which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assels are held separately from those of the academy frust
in separate trustee administered funds. Penslon scheme assels are measured at fair value and
liablliies are measured on an actuatial basis using the prajected unit credit method and discounted
al a rate equivalent fo the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent ferm
and currenoy to the liablliies. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least tiennially and are
updated at each Balance Shest date. The amounts charged to oparating surplus are the ourrent
service cosis and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, setilements and curtailments.
They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net Interest on the net defined benofit
liabliity/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financlal Activities and comprises the interest
cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by
multiplying the falr value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations, The difference between the interest income on the schema assels
and the actual return on the scheme assets Is recognised in ather recognised gains and losses.

Actuarlal gains and losses are recognlsed immedialely in other recognised gains and losses
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

1.14 Fund accounting

Unrestricted incoms funds represent those resources which may be used towards mesting any of
the charitable objects of the Academy at he discretion of the Trustees.

Reatricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to speciic capital putposes
impesed by the Department for Education where the assat acquired or created is held for a specific
purpose.

Restricled general funds comprise all other restricled funds recelved with restrictions imposed by the
funder and includs grants from the Department for Education.

Investrment Income, gains and lossas are alfocatad to the appropriate fund.

1.15 Agency arrangements

The Academy Trust acts an agent in distributing 16-19 Bursary Funds from the EFA. Payments
received from the EFA and subsequent disbursement to students are excluded from the Statement
of Financial Activities as the Academy Trust does not have control over the chatitabls applicaiion ol
the funds. The Academy Trust can use up to 5% of the allocation towards its own administration
costs and this is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities, Where funds have not been fully
applied in the accounting period then an amount will be Included as amounts due fo the EFA.

1,16 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Fstimates and judgements are continually evalualed and are based on historical experlence and
other factors, Including expectations of future events that are believed to be rsasonable under the
circumstances,

Critical accounting estimates and assumplions;

The Academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the fulwre. The resulting
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom saqual the related actual results,
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The presert value of the Local Government Pension Scheme deflned benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variely of assumptions. The
assumptions used In detarmining the net cost {incoms) for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furtheyrmore a roll forward approach which projecis results from the latest full
actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2013 has been used by the actuary in valuing the
penstons llability al 31 August 2016. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll
forward approach and a full actuarlal valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension
Hability.
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

INCOME FROM DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

Restricted

Unrestticted  Restricted fixed asset Total Total

funds funds funds funds funds

2016 2016 2016 2016 2016

_ £ £ £ £ g

Donatlons - 6,265 - 6,265 6,434

Capital Grants “ . 1,715,131 1,715,131 469,530
Total donations and capltal

grants - 6,265 1,715,431 1,721,396 475,964

In 2015, of the total income from donatfons and capital grants, £NIL was to unrestricted funds and
£475,864 was to resiricted funds,

Capital grants of £1,715,131 wara received for Condltion Improvement Funding and £592,226 is retained
in the restrloted fixed asset fund to be spent in 2017.

OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

Unrestricied  Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

2016 2016 Z016 2015

£ £ £ £

Academy rental income 92,854 - . 92,854 87,091
Other Inceme 8,189 25,991 34,180 48,449
Catering income 1,652 - 1,552 313
Sports centre rental income 292,914 - 292,914 330,149
385,509 25,991 421,500 466,002

In 2015, of the total income from other trading activities, £428,062 was to unrestricted funds and £36,940
was to restricted funds.

INVESTMENT INCOME
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2016 2016 2016 2015
4 £ £ £
Bark Interest receivable 2,556 - 2,556 2,030

In 2015, of the total investment income, £2,030 was to unrestricted funds and £NIL was o restricted
funds, : '
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GRAND UNION MULT{ ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

FUNDING FOR ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2016 2016 2016 2015
£ £ . £ £

BIiE/EFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 9,616,214 9,616,214 8,591,363
Pupil Pramium - 536,517 536,517 586,398
Other DIE/EFA grants - 430,236 430,236 343,518

- 10,582,967 10,582,967 10,521,279

Other government grants

Local authotfty SEN incomse - 68,799 68,799 70,920
" 68,799 68,799 70,820

Other funding

Trip income - 77,231 77,231 76,181
- 77,281 77,231 76,181

- 10,728,997 10,728,997 10,668,380

In 20185, of the total Incoma trom charltable activities, £NIL was to unrestricted funds and £710,668,380 was
fo restrictad funds.

OTHER EXPENDITURE
Unrestricted  Restricted Toial Total
funds funds funds funds
2016 20186 2016 2018
g g £ £
Sports centte costs 273,316 9,694 283,010 294,249
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRAUST
(A Gompany Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

7.  EXPENDITURE

Siaff costs Premises Other cosis Towal Total
2016 2016 2018 2016 2015
£ £ £ £ £

Activities;
Dirsct costs 6,185,845 421,242 792,837 7,399,924 7,349,902
Support costs 2,445,598 176,078 1,012,423 3,641,089 3,826,318
£,631,443 597,320 1,812,260 11,041,023 11,166,220

The legal authority to make a compensation payment of £32,201 (2015 - £35,465) was in compllance with
the Academies Financial Handbook, being delegated authority from the Education Funding Agency.

In 2018, of the tatal expenditure of £11,041,023 (2015 - £11,166,220), £162,935 (2015 - £765,035) was to
yunrestricted funds and £10,878,088 {2015 - £11,001,188) was to reslricted funds.
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

Total Total
funds funds
2ni6 2015
£ £

DIRECT COSTS - EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS
Wages and salaries 4,676,563 4,737,917
National insurance 470,668 428,031
Penslon cost 689,953 604,391
Depreciation 421,242 422771
Siaff costs 348,661 350,423
Educational supplies 590,617 588,339
Examination fess 136,874 139,607
Staff development ' 33,434 41,778
Curricufum transport 31,912 25,645

7,359,924 7,338,802

SUPPORT COSTS - EDUCATIONAL OPEHATIONS

Wages and salaries 1,866,410 1,874,983
Natiohal Insurance 136,563 124,848
Penslon cost 443,625 449,803
Repairs and maintenance 176,078 241,118
Other aperational costs 86,936 89,059
Cleaning costs 8,307 16,852
Water and rates 64,103 63,251
Energy 192,206 208,304
Insurance 69,077 64,080
Securlty and transpott : 17,381 31,240
Spedial faclities 90,894 98,521
Catering 127,874 135,168
Administrative costs . 107,288 104,410
Legal and professional costs 248,807 306,560
Governance costs 15,350 18,150

3,641,099 3,826,318

Total Academy's educational operations 11,041,023 11,166,220

Page 35



GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guaranies)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

NET INCOMING RESOURCES/{RESOURCES EXPENDED)

Thig is stated after charging:

2016 2018
£ £

Depraciation of tangible fixed assels:
- owned by the acadermy 421,242 422,771
. - ownied by the sporis centre 10,261 7,434
Auditors’ eemuneration - audit 14,100 13,300
Auditors’ remunaration - non-audit 2,050 2,000

The academy has taken exemption from presenting its unconsolidated income and expenditure account
under §408 of Companies Act 2008. The surplus of income over expenditure in the academy for the year
was (£1,423,346) (2015 - £157,609). The subsidiary campany, Featherstone Sporis Centre, donated
£20,334 {2015 - £31,801) to the academy in the year under gift aid.

Grand Union Multl Academy Trust ts a Muiii Academy Trust. There ars no other consistent academles
currently In the Multi Academy Trust and no central charges are theretore applicable.
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

STAFF COSTS
Staff costs ware as follows:
2016 2016
£ £
Wages and salarles 5,508,772 6,577,435
Social security costs 607,231 552,880
Qperating costs of defined benefit penslon schemes 1,133,578 1,054,194
8,250,581 8,184,509
Supply teacher costs 348,661 350,423
Staff restruciuring costs 32,201 35,465
' 8,631,443 8,570,397
Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Redundancy payments 31,951 35,215
Other restructuring costs 250 250
32,201 35,465

Restructuring and redundancy payments were made in compliance with the Academies Financial
Handbaok 2015.

‘The average nutmber of persons employed by the Academy during the year was as follows:

2016 2018

. . Mo, No.
Teachets g2 94
. Administratlon and support 69 72
Managemeni 11 11
172 177

The number-of employees whose eﬁqployee benefiis {excluding employer pension cosis) exceeded
£60,000 was:

2016 2015

No. No.

in the band £60,001 - £70,000 8 7
in the hand £70,001 - £80,000 4 4
in the band £100,001 - £110,000 i} 1
i o]

In the band £110,001 - £120,000

Eleven of the ahove employees participated In the Teachers’ Pension Scheme. During the year ended 31
August 2016, pension contributions for thase staff amounted to £132,669 (2015 - £104,021). The cther
employeas participated in ihe Local Government Pension Scheme and pension contributions for these
members amounted to £17,243 (2015 - £9,241). :
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GRAND UNION MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

11,

12

The Key Managemeni Personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the Senior
Management Team as listed on page 1.

The total amount of employee benefits (including employer penslon contribulions) received by Key
Management Personnel received in the year to 31 August 2016 comprises:
- £041,608 {2015 - £919,967) recelved by the Senior Management Team far thelr services to the
Academy Trust; and
- Employee henefits (including smployer pension contiibutions) received by trusiees for thelr
services to the Academy Trust as disclosed in nole 11.

The Haadteachar is a Trusiee and a member of ihe Senior Management Team.

TRUSTEES' REMUMERATION AND EXPENSES

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other bensfits from an employment
with the academy trust. The Principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneralion in respect of
sarvices they provide undertaking the roles of principal and other staff members under thelr contracts of
employment, and not in respsct of their role as Trustees. The value of Trustees’ remunetation and other
benefits was as follows:

2016 2015

£000 £000

Mr Gerry Wadwa, Head Teacher & Ramuneraiion 110-115 105-110
Accounting Oificer Panslon contributions paid 15-20 15-20
Mrs | Kaur Remuneratlon 55-60 55-80
Penslan contributlons paid 5-10 5-10

- Ms J Spreadbury Remuneratlon 55-6D 55-80
Pansion confributions paid 5-10 5-10

Mrs S Kaur Bangar Remuneration 35-40 30-35
Pension contributions paid 0-5 0-5

During the year, no Trustees received any reimbursement of expenses (2015 - £NIL).

TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

In accordance with normal coramercial practice the academy has purchased insurance tc profect trustees
and officers from claims atising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy
business, The insurance provides cover Up to £5,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year
anded 31 August 2016 was £1,878 {2015 - £1,8485).
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TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Assets
Leasshold Fixiuresand  Compuler under
property fitings  equipment construction Total
Group ' £ £ £ £ £
Cost ’
At 1 Septetmber 2016 17,791,126 260,161 512,184 66,992 18,630,473
Additions 177,158 33,610 18,231 1,091,183 1,320,182
Transfer belwean classes 66,892 - - (66,282) -
At 31 August 2018 18,035,276 203,771 530,425 1,081,183 19,950,656
Depraciation
At 1 Seplember 2018 900,393 98,815 204,033 - 1,293,241
Charge for the year 264,600 55,955 110,381 - 430,936
At 31 August 2016 1,164,993 154,770 404,414 - 1,724,177
Net book value )
At 31 August 2018 16,870,283 139,001 126,011 1,091,183 18,226,478
At 31 August 2015 16,890,733 161,346 218,161 66,992 17,337,232

Inoluded in land and buildings is land at valuation of £4,700,000 (2015 - £4,700,000) which is not
depreciated. The property was valued in 2012 on conversion using the depreciated replacement cost
method by Bidwells LLP. The leasehold properly Is held under a 125 ysar lease from 2011 from London
Borough of Ealing.

Asseis
Leasehold Fixtures and Computer under
property fittings  equipment construction Tolai
Acadsmy £ £ £ £ g
Cost
At 1 September 2015 17,782,676 222,890 512,184 66,992 18,584,852
Additions 177,158 13,044 18,231 1,001,183 1,300,516
Transfer balween classes 66,092 - - (66,992) -
At 31 Augus! 2018 18,026,826 236,934 530,425 1,001,183 19,885,368
Bepreciation
At 1 September 2015 900,041 81,271 294,033 - 1,275,345
Ghargs for the yeat 264,431 46,431 110,381 - 421,243
At 31 August 2016 1,164,472 127,702 404,414 - 1,666,588
Net book value
Al 31 August 2016 16,862,354 109,232 126,011 1,001,183 18,188,780
At 31 August 2015 16,882,635 141,718 218,161 66,892 17,308,507
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13. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS {continued)

tncluded in land and buildings is land at valuation of £4,700,000 (2015 - £4,700,000) which is not
depreciated. The property was valued in 2012 on convarsion using the depreciated replacement cost
method by Bidwells LLP. The leaschold property is held under a 125 year lease frem 2011 from London

Borough of Ealing at a peppersorm rent.

14,  FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Shares in

group

undertakings

Academy £
Market value

At 1 Sepferber 2015 and 31 August 2018

The Acadesmy’s 100% shareholding in the wholly owned subsidiary, Featherstone Sports Gentre Limited
(company number 07872886), is included in the balance sheet at the cost of the share capital cwned,
being one share of £1. The principal activity of the sompany is to provide sports facililles for the general
public. Featherstone Sports Centre Limited Is incerporated in the UK. The Sports Centre had turnover of
£292,914 In the year and expendiiure of £303,344, resulting in a loss of £10,430 after the gift aided
donation of £20,334 to the academy. Total reserves at 31 August 2016 were £2,957 (2015 - £13,387).

15. DEBTORS

Group Academy
2016 2018 2016 2015
e £ £ £
Trade debtors 12,965 5,324 12,965 5,324

Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 54,740 -
Other debtors 150,583 178,563 150,583 178,563
Prepayments and accrued income 141,353 122,803 141,018 122,803
304,901 308,790 359,306 308,780
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186.

CREDITORS:
Amounts falling due within one year

Other taxatlon and social seclirity
Other creditors

Deferred income

Deferred income at the start of the year
Resources deferred during the yeat
Amounis released from previous years

Deferred income at 31 August 2016

Group Academy

2016 2016 2016 2016

£ £ g ' g
173,850 167,418 173,850 167,418
614,880 167,416 605,468 152,125
788,730 334,834 779,318 319,643
Group Academy

2016 2015 2016 2015

£ £ £ £
24,933 37,063 24,933 37,053
158,798 24,933 158,798 24,933

{24,933} {37,053) (24,933) (37,063}
158,798 24,933 158,788 24,933
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STATEMENT OF FUNDS
Brought Transfers Gains/ Carried
Forward Income Expenditure infout {Losses) Forward
£ £ 2 £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds
General :
unrastrloted funds . 157,869 398,065 {436,251) - - 119,673
Restrlcted funds
General Annual
Grant (GAG) 834,426 9,616,213  (9,309,799)  (197,279) - 943,561
Other DFE/EFA
grants 63,901 715,883 {715,883) - - 63,901
Other restricted
funds 329,642 429,157 {357,164) - - 401,635
Pension reserve (3,430,000) - (74,000) - (3,004,000) (6,508,000)

(2,202,031) 10,761,253  (10,456,846)  (197,279) (3,004,000) (5,098,903)

Restricted fixed asset funds

DIE/EFA capltal

grant 1,515,646 1,715,131 (159,181) - - 3,071,596
Capital expenditure

from GAG 730,084 - {48,155) 197,279 - 924,208
Assets on

conversion 15,041,500 - {223,600) - - 14,817,900

17,387,230 1,715,131 {430,936) 197,279 - 18,818,704

Total restricted

funds 45,185,198 12,476,384 {10,887,782) - {3,004,000) 13,719,801
Total of funds 15,203,058 12,874,448 (11,324,083) - {3,004,000) 13,839,474

e —— ——— i e —— ey me—————
— s MmemIE—D It e e

The specific purposes for which the funds are to beé applied are as follows:

The General Annual Grant (GAG) must be used for the normal running cosis of the Academy. Under the
funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject io limits on the amount
of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2016,

The other resirictad funds relate to varlous school and educational activities which are not funded by the
Ganerat Annual Grant, This includes pupil premium and other Local Authority funding for which Income
received is used o caver costs associated with these activities. .

The defined bensfit pension schema relates to the penslon deficit arising on the LGPS pension scheme
and through which all the pension scheme movements are recognised.
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STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

The transfer belween the GAG restricted funds and restricted fixed asset funds represents amounts
capilalised during the year.

The restricted fixad asset fund was funded predominately by the funds innerited on converslon from Ealing
local authotliy.

Grand Union is the only academy in the multl academy trust.

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

Restricted
Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2016 2016 2016 2016 2015
£ £ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - ~ 18,226,478 18,226,478 17,337,232
Current agsels 119,673 2,197,825 502,226 2,909,724 1,720,660
Creditors due within one year - (788,728) - {788,728) (334,5834)
Pension defloit - {6,508,000} - (8,508,008) (3,430,000)

119,673  (5,098,803) 18,818,704 13,838,474 15,203,058

RECONGILIATION OF NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS TO NET CASH FLOW
FROM CPERATING ACTIVITIES

2016 2016
£ b
Nel income for the year {as per Statermnent of financial activities) 1,550,416 151,907
Adjustment for:
Depreclation chargoes 430,936 422771
Decrease in debtors 1,889 8,881
ncreasaf{decrease) in creditors 453,886 (81,020
FRS 102 pension adjustment 74,000 78,000
Net cash provided by operating activitles 2,511,137 580,539
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20.

21,

22.

23

24,

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2016 2015

£ £

Cash at bank and in hand 2,604,825 1,413,870
Total 2,604,825 1,413,870

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE .
The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and does not have share oapital,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Before the former school, Featherstona High School, convetted to an academy, Featherstane Academy,
the school had entered into various leases for capital equipment with an independent third party. These
leases have subsequently been Identified as finance [eases,

As neither the former school nor Featherstone High School (now Grand Union Multi Academy Trust) were
ampowered to enter into such laases, the lease payments ware suspended and the lessors were fnvited to
collect their squipment, as agreed under the terms of the leases.

Following legal advice, the Trustees do not conslder any further payments should be made and no
provision has been made for such payments in these accounis. The fuli coniraciad amount outstanding at
31 August 2018 where the lease agreemants are not deemed to be null and vold is £328,000 (2015 -
£328,000). This amount has not been Included as a liabllity as the Trustees consider that the fikelihood of
the academy having to make such a payment of 1o pay any other penalty is remofe.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
At 81 August 2016 the group and Academy had capltal commitments as follows:

Group Academy
2016 2015 2016 2015
£ £ £ £
Contracted for but not provided in these
financial siatements 562,226 - 592,226 -
PENSION COMMITMENTS

The group's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachet's Pension Scheme for
England and Walas {TPS) for academic and refated staff, and the tocal Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which [s managed by Londen Borough of Ealing Pension Fund . Both are
Mulii-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period anded 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31
March 2013,
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24.

PENSION COMMITMENTS {continued)
There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either fie beginning o the end of the financial year.
Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pensian Scheme (TPS) is a stalutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachars' Pensions Regulations (2010) and, from 1 Aprl 2014, by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
Regulations 2014, Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies and, from 1 January 2007,
automatic for teachers In parttime employment following appolntment or a ¢hange of coniract, although
they are able to opt out.

The TPS is ah unfunded scheme and members contribute on a 'pay as you go’ basis — these contributions
along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension

benefits are paid by public funds providad by Parliamant.
Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Not less than every four years the Government Acluary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a
formal actuarial review of the TPS In accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and
Employst Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury, The alm of the review Is to specify the
level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value
of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was
catried out as at 31 March 2012 and in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and
Employsr Cost Gap) Directions 2014, The valuation report was published by the Depariment for Edlucation
on 9 June 2014, The key elemenis of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

+ employsr contribulion rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay, including a 0.08% smployer
administration charge {currently 14.1%)

« tolal scheme liablliles (penslons curtently in payment and the estimaled cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £191,500 million, and notlonal assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held af the valuation date) of £176,600 million giving a notional
past service deficit of £14,900 million

» an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay wilt be applied fo future valuations

e the assumed real rate of return s 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% In excess of garnings. The rale of
real earnings growth is assumed to be 2,75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%.

During the previous year the emplayer contribution rate was 14.1%. The TPS valuation for 2012
determined an employer rate of 16.4%, which was payable from September 2015. The next vatuation of
the TPS will be as at March 2016, whereupon the employer conttibution rate is expected to be reassessed
and will be payable frorm 1 April 2019,

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £689,953 (2015 - £604,391).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Fensions website
{(www.teacherspansions.co.uk/news/employers/2014/06/publication-of-the-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out In FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has
accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribugion scheme. The trust has set
out ahove the Information available on the scheme.
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24,

PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

- Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with assats held in separate trustee-administerad funds,
The total contribution made for the yaar ended 31 August 2016 was £499,000 (2015 - £5086,000), of which
employer’s contributions totalled £388,000 (2015 - £391,000) and employees’ contributions  totalled
£111,000 {2015 - £115,000). The agreed confribution rates for future years are 32.2% for employers and

B.5-12.5% for employees,

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantes that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilifies would be met by the

Depariment for Education. The guaraniea came into force on 18 July 2013.
Principat actuatiaf assumptions:

2016 2015
Discount rate for scheme liahilities 2.20% 4.00 %
Rate of increase in salaries 3.65 % 3.95 %
Rate of incraasa for pensions in payment / inflation 2.00 % 2.20 %
Inflation assumption {CP1) 1.90 % 2.20 %

The current mortality assumptions include sufficlent allowance for future improvements in mortallty rates.
The assumed life expectations on ratirament age 65 are:

2016 2015
Retlring today
Males 23.0 23.0
Females ‘ 25.6 25.5
Retlring in 20 years
Males 25.3 252
Females 28.0 27.9

- The group's and academy's share of the assets and Habilities tn the scheme and the expected rates of

return were:

Fair value at Fair value at

31 August 31 August

2016 2015

£ £

Equities ’ 1,849,000 1,218,000
Debi instruments } 658,000 461,000
Property 258,000 195,000
Other - 82,000
Cash 11,000 10,000
Total market value of assets 2,776,000 1,946,000

The actual raturn on scheme assels was £368,000.
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24,

PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activitles are as follows:

2016 2015
£ £
Current service cost (net of employee contributions) (320,000} {331,000)
Net interest cost and administrative expenses (142,000) {138,000}
Total : ' (462,000} (469,000)
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows:
2016 2015
£ £
Opening defined benefit obligation 5,376,000 4,762,000
GCurrent service cost 320,000 331,000
Interest cost 217,000 193,000
Contrlbutions by eraployees 111,000 115,000
Actuarial losses 3,285,000 -
Benefils paid (25,000) {25,000)
Closing defined henatit obligation . 9,284,000 5,376,000
Moveiments In the falr valug of the group's share of scheme assets:
2016 2015
£ 2
Openhing fair value of scheme assets 1,946,000 1,441,600
Reiurn on plan assels 75,000 55,000
Actuarial gains and (losses) - 281,000 {31,000)
Contributions by employer 388,000 391,600
Contributions by employees 111,000 115,000
Benefits paid (25,000) {25,000)
Glosing fair value of scheme assets 2,776,000 1,946,000
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25.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 August 2016 the total of the group's fulure minimurn lease payments under hon-cancellable
operating leases was:

2016 2015
Group ' £ £
Amounts payable:
Within 1 vear - 4,908

At 31 August 2016 the Academy had annual commilments undet non-cancellable operating leases as
follows:

Academy
Amounts payable:
Within 1 vear “ 4,908
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26,

7.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Owlng to the nature of the Academy's operations and the composilion of the board of trustees being
drawn from local public and private seclor organisations, transactians may take place with organisations in
which the trust has an inferest, All transactions Involving such organlsations are conducted at arm's length
and In accordance with the Academy's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures,

During the year the Academy paid £300 (2015 - £855) to Ambassadors of Sound, a business which Is
owned by the husband of Mrs Jyoti Subharwal who is a Trustee,

During the year the Academy paid ENIL (2015 - £60} to Kallha Bros Building Merchants, a business
which is owned by Mr Kewal Kallha who is a Trustee, for bullding supplies.

The above transactions wera on an ayms length basls and there were no outstanding balances at the year
end in respect of the fransactions, (2015« £NIL).

During the year the Academy received £3,500 (2015 - £3,500) for the Schools Sports Partnership
Provision from Wolf Flelds Primary School, & school at which Mr Kewal Kaliha Is also a Trustee. This
transaction was on the same terms as those that apply to all schoofs participating in the Schools Sports
Partnership Provision. Mr Kewal Kallha was hot Involved In any discussions relating to this transaction.

During the yoar the Academy paltd £11,854 {2015 - £11,945) to Mr Kewal Kallha's daughter-in-law, who s
employed by the school as a receptionist. Mr Kewal Kallha is a Trustes of the school.

During the year £5,993 (2015 - £5,394) was paid lo Mrs Fay Haras-Gummer's daughter, who Is employsd
by the Featherstone Sports Centre, a subsidiary of the academy. Mrs Fay Haras-Gummer is & Trusies of
the academy.

These two employments were on the same terms of employment as all otlier employeses. The Trustees,
Mrs Fay Haras-Gummer and Mr Kewal Kallha, do not take patt In discusslons relating directly to the
appointment, employment or remuneration of employees mentioned above,

Delails of incorne and expenditure allocation of the subsidiary company, Featherstone Sports Gentre
Limited, arg included in accounting policles.

Detalls of the gift aided donation from the subsidiary company, Featherstone Spotts Centre, to the
academy trust are detalled In note 14.

Advantags Is taken of FRS 102 exemption from disclosure of al other intra group transaclicns between
the academy and its wholly owned subsidiary, Featherstone Sports Centre Limited,

FRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Percentage
Company name Sharehaolding
Featherstone Sports Caentre Limited 100%

Principal activity - operation of a sports centre,
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28,

29,

FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF FRS 102

It is the first year that the Academy Trust has presenied iis financial statements under SORP 2015 and
FRS 102. The following disclosures are required in the year of transition. The last financlal statements
prepared under previous UK GAAP were far the year ended 31 August 2015 and the date of transition to
FRS 102 and SORP 2015 was therefore 1 September 2014. As a cohsequence of adopting FRS 102 and
SORP 2015, a number of accounting policles have changed to comply with those standards.

Comparative flgures have been restated to reflest the adjustments made, except to the extent that the
Trusteas have taken advantage of exemptions to retrospeactive application of FRS 102 permitied by FRS
102 Chapter 35 'Transitlon to thls FRS',

Reconelllations and descriptions of the effect of the transition to FRS 102 and SORP 2015 on total funds
and net incormne/{expendiiure) for the comparative perlod reported under previous UK GAAP and SCRP
2005 are given below. '

RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL FUNDS Notes 1 Seplember 2014 31 August 2015
£ £

Total funds under previous UK GAAP 158,172,151 15,203,058
Total funds reparted under FRS 102 15,172,161 15,293,058
Reconcifiatlan of net income Notes 31 August 2015
£

Nat income previously reported under UK GAAP 181,807
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost A {30,000)
Net movement in funds repotied under FRS 102 151,807

Explanation of changes to previously reported funds and net income/expenditure:

The date of transition to FRS102 was 1 Seplember 2014. There were no adjustments
atlsing on fransition to FRS102 that had an effect on the net reserves o on incomeand
expenditure af the date of transition, at 31 August 2015 or 31 August 2016, No

A recongilialtion is therefore provided and the figures disclosed In accordance with
theprevious financial reporting framework and those detemined in accordance with
FRS102 for the same period other than a reconcliation to the prasantation of net
pension interest of £30,000 as a compehent of Income and re-allocation of pension
intevast Inaccordance with FRS 102, '

MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undartakes to contrbute to the assels of the company in the
event of it being wound up while hefshe is a member, or within cne year after ha/she ceasss io be a
member, such amount as may be raquired, not exceeding £ 10 for the debts and liabllitles contracted

befora ha/she ceases to be a membet.
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